# The University of Texas at Tyler Human Resource Development (HRD) Ph.D. Program Handbook Fall 2021



The University of Texas at **\*TYLER** 



## **Table of Contents**

Introduction	3
Message from PhD Program Coordinator, Dr. Kim Nimon	4
General Requirements	5
Doctoral Program Milestones	9
2021 PhD in HRD Coursework Schedule	10
Doctoral Forms	11
Doctoral Preliminary Exam Questions	12
Doctoral Preliminary Exam Grading	13
Human Resource Development (HRD) Dissertation	14
Graduate School Financial Assistance	15
Important Information	17
Professional Associations and Conferences	19
Doctoral Programs FAQ's	20
Human Resource Development Ph.D. Alum in Higher Education	22
Student of the Year	24
Dissertation Awards	25
Appendices	26
Approval of Dissertation Proposal	27
Human Resource Develonment Ph.D. Alum Publications	28



#### Introduction

From a practice perspective, human resource development (HRD) is a process for developing and unleashing human expertise through organization development and personnel training and development for the purpose of improving performance. From a theoretical and research perspective, HRD is mechanisms of shaping individuals' values and beliefs and skilling through learning-related activities to support the performance of the host institutional system. Careers in this field are available in business, nonprofit, educational, and governmental settings.

The HRD program provides students the opportunity to combine study and related experiences to develop, apply, analyze, synthesize, and evaluate knowledge of the purposes, practices, issues, and problems of work and organizational performance. Students also can learn how to design, deliver, and evaluate effective training and development programs.

The University of Texas at Tyler's doctoral program in human resource development is designed to develop scholars who will advance the profession and serve as leaders in higher education, government, and industry.

#### **Doctoral Program Outcomes**

The graduates of this program will be able to contribute to research and application in the areas of improving individual, group/team, and organization performance, developing leadership talent within organizations, and leading and facilitating change in organizations with culturally diverse workforces.

The doctoral program outcomes for candidates who successfully complete the program:

- 1. Integrate knowledge from HRD and related disciplines to support the development of researchers and scholars for diverse settings;
- 2. Conduct original research in HRD to contribute to research, theory and practice;
- 3. Create, synthesize and disseminate original research about the discipline in a variety of publication and conference venues;
- 4. Enhance HRD leadership capability in a variety of workplace settings including business and industry, education, and healthcare; and,
- 5. Collaborate with national and international leaders to promote the discipline.

#### Rankings

In 2019, <u>humanresourcesmba.net</u> placed UT Tyler as first for the most affordable Ph.D. program.



## Message from PhD Program Coordinator, Dr. Kim Nimon

I am thrilled that you have decided to pursue your terminal degree here at The University of Texas at Tyler. For most of you, this will be a once in a lifetime journey. I think it is important to remember that the journey is part of the destination. While I cannot promise that there will not be bumps along the way, I can promise that the program is designed to shape and develop your abilities to become a scholar or scholar-practitioner in the field of HRD.



While we have designed the program to optimize your time and energies,

I hope that you will take advantage of every opportunity to expand your knowledge and seize opportunities to work with the faculty beyond what is required in classwork. You have the opportunity to work with leaders in the field of HRD as UT Tyler faculty regularly serve in leadership roles in the Academy of Human Resource Development (AHRD) as well as editors, issue editors, and contributors for AHRD sponsored journals including *Human Resource Development Quarterly, Human Resource Development International, Advances in Developing Human Resources*, and *Human Resource Development Review*.

In addition to working with our expert faculty, I hope you will take advantage of getting to know our UT Tyler alum. As you will see, our graduates are representing UT Tyler well and leading the field in institutions all around the United States. I am blessed to see how our alum stay connected and support each other as they seek to make a difference in society by developing and helping employees reach their full potential.

As you embark on this academic journey, please take care of your emotional, physical, and spiritual needs. Make quality time to stay connected with family and friends. Commit to a regimen of being physically active. Stay connected spiritually. While it will be easy to let any of these needs go unmet, I believe the time you devote to your PhD coursework and dissertation will be multiplied if you maintain balance in your life.

Know that all the faculty are here to help you succeed. If at any time you don't feel that way, please reach out to me, Dr. Tom Roberts, Director of Graduate Programs, and Dr. Krist Swimberghe, Interim Dean Soules College of Business.



### **General Requirements**

#### **Residency Requirements**

Under Texas state law, an applicant or enrolled student is classified either as a resident of Texas, a nonresident, or a foreign student. Residency for admission and tuition purposes at a public college or university in Texas is different from residency for voting or taxing purposes. For more information about establishing residency, visit the <u>Admissions website</u>.

#### **Registration Requirements**

The minimum credit hour load to be considered a full-time graduate student is nine semester hours during the fall, spring, or the summer semester. The maximum credit hour load permitted is 12 semester hours during the fall, spring, or summer semester. Enrollment status is defined in terms of semester credit hours.

#### **Credit Hour Requirements**

The Ph.D. in HRD is a 60-hour program beyond the master's degree, culminating in a dissertation. For all University requirements for the Ph.D. degree, please refer to the <u>Doctoral Policies section</u> of the Graduate Policies and Programs chapter.

#### **Degree Plan**

For the most up-to-date information, please visit the <u>HRD graduate catalog</u>.

#### **Academic Advising**

The Soules College of Business has two full-time graduate academic advisors. Academic advisors provide course information to ensure timely course registration and graduation. Updated information on how to contact them can be found on their website here.

#### **Class Schedule**

The Ph.D. in HRD is not an online program; however, we do use an executive format program whereby students only meet five times a semester: Three classes (three credit hours each, fall and spring) and two classes (three credit hours each, summer) will meet five times per semester, four times in the summer. The balance of required class time will be completed via online and project-based formats.



#### **Academic Integrity**

Students are responsible for upholding academic integrity in all submitted academic work. Plagiarism is a serious matter; students suspected of academic dishonesty may be subject to disciplinary action.

Information about general UT Tyler academic dishonesty policies <u>can be found here</u>.

Soules College of Business Statement of Ethics:

The ethical problems facing local, national and global business communities are an ever-increasing challenge. It is essential the Soules College of Business help students prepare for lives of personal integrity, responsible citizenship, and public service. In order to accomplish these goals, both students and faculty of the Soules College of Business at The University of Texas at Tyler will:

- Ensure honesty in all behavior, never cheating or knowingly giving false information.
- Create an atmosphere of mutual respect for all students and faculty regardless of race, creed, gender, age or religion.
- Develop an environment conducive to learning.
- Encourage and support student organizations and activities.
- Protect property and personal information from theft, damage and misuse.
- Conduct yourself in a professional manner both on and off campus.

Furthermore, the Soules College of Business strongly adheres to the UT Tyler Honor Code: "Honor and integrity that will not allow me to lie, cheat, or steal, nor to accept the actions of those who do."



#### **Class Weekend Expectations**

As students of the Soules College of Business, students are expected to dress in a professional manner at class weekends. Business casual attire is expected of all students during classes.

Some printing is available on campus; however, it is strongly advised that students print materials before coming to campus. Each student receives \$25 in Pharos Dollars in the Fall, Spring, and Summer to be used for printing in the on-campus computer labs and in the library. You can visit an Account Management Center located in the Library across from the circulation desk or on the second floor between the University Center and Administration Building. You can check your Pharos account balance through this device. You can also log on to the P2 Portal and get a statement of your Pharos account.

For the Fall and Spring semesters, lunch will be provided on Saturdays during the one-hour break in between the 8:00am and 1:00pm classes. During these lunches, the PhD student advisory team coordinate "Lunch n Learns" where faculty, students, and guests discuss various topics pertinent to PhD students. These lunches are optional but highly encouraged.

#### **Transportation**

Tyler has its own regional airport, but many out-of-town students find better airfare options and affordable prices flying in and out of Dallas/Fort Worth (DFW) or Dallas Love Field (DAL). Also, while Uber and Lyft do operate in Tyler, options are limited.

#### Lodging

Many students travel to Tyler for class weekends and choose to stay at the following hotels where student rates may be available. Be sure to call the hotel to inquire about specific rates for UT Tyler HRD PhD students.

Staybridge Suites	Hilton Garden Inn
2759 McDonald Rd	220 E. Grande Blvd
Tyler, TX 75702	Tyler, TX 75701
(903) 566 - 1100	(903) 509 - 1166
Code: UT Tyler	Code: PHDspaceHRD
T ' (* 11T	TT 10 4 1 TT14
Fairfield Inn	Homewood Suites by Hilton
309 W. Heritage Dr.	3104 Golden Road
309 W. Heritage Dr.	3104 Golden Road
309 W. Heritage Dr. Tyler, TX 75703	3104 Golden Road Tyler, TX 75701



#### **Performance Standards**

Continued registration is contingent upon the student maintaining a 3.0 (on 4.0 scale) or higher GPA. To remain in good standing in the HRD Ph.D. program, a student may earn no more than one C grade regardless of their overall GPA. A second C grade or any one grade below a C will subject the student to dismissal from the Ph.D. program in HRD at the discretion of the program coordinator and the Dean of the Soules College of Business. For further information, see the graduate policies in the <u>UT Tyler course catalog</u>.



## **Doctoral Program Milestones**

Students entering the program in Fall 2021 can complete the doctoral program coursework in 2 years. Towards the end of coursework, students select their Dissertation Chair. The Dissertation Chair will lead students through the process of inviting the remaining members of the Dissertation Committee. Students must select the Dissertation Chair before inviting any other committee members. At the end of year 2, students complete the proficiency exam. Upon successful completion, students are recommended for doctoral candidacy. Students begin their dissertation at the beginning of the third year and have up to 5 years to complete the dissertation after admittance to candidacy. The Graduate School offers a great overview of the dissertation process here.

See the timeline below for key doctoral program milestones and links to important forms. A description of each form and the preliminary examination questions are on the following pages.

Year 1	Year 2		Years 3 +
• ,		• A	repare and Submit Dissertation Proposal pproval of Dissertation Proposal RB Approval
End of Y	Year 2	• D	issertation
Work with HRI	O Graduate Faculty	0	Schedule Oral Defense
to appoint disse	rtation committee	0	Dissertation Acceptance
Complete Prelin	ninary Examination		
• Recommendation	on for Candidacy		

*Note.* Students have 5 years to complete the dissertation after admittance to candidacy. Students coming into the program in Fall of 2021 must complete a minimum of 12 dissertation credits. Students have a maximum of 9 years to complete the doctoral program.



## 2021 PhD in HRD Coursework Schedule

#### Year 1 Coursework

Semester	Course	
Fall	HRD 6350: Disciplined Inquiry in HRD	
	HRD 6351: Univariate Statistics	
	HRD 6388: Talent Management and Development	
Spring	HRD 6312: Contemporary Issues in the HRD Literature	
	HRD 6355: Multivariate Statistics	
	HRD 6366: Seminar on Organization Change & Development	
Summer	HRD 6343: Foundations of Qualitative Research	
	HRD 6314: Organizational Intervention Approaches	

#### **Year 2 Coursework**

Semester	Course
Fall	HRD 6334: Organizational Consulting
	HRD 6352: Structural Equation Modeling
	HRD 6353: Advanced Qualitative Research in HRD
Spring	HRD 6310: Advanced Theoretical Foundations of HRD
	HRD 6359: Research Seminar in HRD
	HRD 6377: Leadership Theory and Practice
Summer	HRD 6360: Proposal Development
	HRD 6391: Advanced Topics in HRD

Check <u>here</u> for the most up to date coursework schedule.



#### **Doctoral Forms**

The Doctoral Program Milestones timeline includes links to all the forms that are required to be submitted to The Graduate School by the Program Coordinator during the student's tenure at UT Tyler. After filling out the form, sign it as required and submit to The Graduate School. If you have any questions about the forms, please contact The Graduate School, <u>GradForms@uttyler.edu</u>.

**STUDENTS**: Although most of these forms are initiated by your Dissertation Chair or Program Coordinator, <u>YOU</u> are responsible for ensuring that forms are filed in a timely manner. Please read and follow the directions on each form when completing.

Below is a brief description of each of the forms:

#### **Appointment of Dissertation Committee**

This form is used to nominate members of the student's dissertation committee or to change membership of an existing committee. Committee membership must be approved by the Dean of The Graduate School. The process of selecting committee members is not typically initiated until students have completed the first two years of coursework.

#### **Proficiency Examination Report and Recommendation for Candidacy**

This form is used to report the results of Preliminary Exams to The Graduate School and to certify advancement to candidacy. Students may not take their proficiency examination until the dissertation committee has been established.

#### **Approval of Dissertation Proposal** (see Appendix)

This form, once completed by the dissertation chair, certifies that the dissertation committee has approved the proposal by the Ph.D. student. This form is **NOT** submitted by the student, but must be submitted by the dissertation chair, along with the proposal, to the director of the program.

#### **Request to Schedule Oral Defense**

This form is used to set the date for the Oral Defense. It must be submitted to The Graduate School along with the Approval of Dissertation Draft and a complete draft of the dissertation no later than 10 working days before the proposed date of the Oral Defense.

#### Final Oral Defense Report

This form certifies that the student has successfully defended an acceptable dissertation. The form must be submitted to The Graduate School within 5 working days of the completion of the final Oral Defense.

Updated 6/1/2021



#### **Doctoral Preliminary Exam Questions**

The Ph.D. in HRD comprehensive/preliminary exam will be a take-home written document that conforms to APA  $7^{th}$  edition and will not exceed 51 double-spaced pages of text (exclusive of references, tables, and figures). All references, tables (if any), and figures (if any) should be placed at the end of the document according to APA  $7^{th}$  edition requirements. To further assist with formatting, each question can be considered a separate chapter with its own headings starting at level 1. However, please ensure that page numbering is consecutive across the responses to the questions, if using a chapter format (i.e. number pages 1-51 plus references, tables, and figures).

This is an independent examination and you are not allowed to work collaboratively or seek the assistance of others' expertise, nor are you allowed to have your exam copy edited and proofed. The University of Texas at Tyler academic dishonesty policy will be strictly applied to this examination. The format will include the following four questions designed to help further the progress toward the proposal development milestone in the program.

Question 1: Articulate the phenomenon of your research interest and describe why it is compelling, appropriate, and relevant to the field of HRD (Approximately 5 - 8 pages).

Question 2: Provide a comprehensive (yet abbreviated) synthesis of the literature on the phenomenon of your research interest and clearly identify the gap(s) that require further research. Conclude by identifying the gap that you seek to address with your study (Approximately 15-20 pages).

Question 3: Based upon the gap that you have articulated in Question 2, please describe the research design that you will employ and your rationale for that design choice. Further, describe and discuss your proposed approaches to data collection, analysis, and how you will address issues associated with reliability and validity from either a qualitative or quantitative approach (Approximately 10-15 pages).

Question 4: Imagine that you have completed your study. Describe how your study contributes to the field of HRD and broadly to the content domains within a business college context from research, theory, and pragmatic perspectives. In other words, given that your Ph.D. is being obtained from a college of business with a concentration in HRD and organizational change, articulate the contributions of your study to the field of HRD and to broader business domains from research, theory, and practice perspectives (Approximately 5 - 8 pages).



## **Doctoral Preliminary Exam Grading**

#### Grading

Full Pass = All four questions have been satisfactorily addressed in a full pass.

Partial Pass = Three of four questions have been satisfactorily addressed, which has resulted in a partial pass. The student will be expected to rewrite the one failed question during a retake. The schedule for the retake to be determined.

Fail = Two or more questions have not been satisfactorily addressed resulted in a fail. The student will be expected to retake the full exam. The schedule for the retake to be determined.

Failure to retake the exam, in partial or full format by the specified deadline, will result in termination from the Ph.D. program.



## Human Resource Development (HRD) Dissertation

After successful completion of coursework and the preliminary exam, students are required to complete a dissertation to successfully complete the PhD program. The dissertation is a comprehensive research study in your primary research interest area. The dissertation can be conducted through quantitative, qualitative, or a mixed-methods approach. Ultimately, the dissertation creates new knowledge in the HRD field. Students can choose the traditional doctoral dissertation or a multi-paper doctoral dissertation. See the table below for more details.

Traditional Doctoral Dissertation	<ul> <li>Deliverable is a summary of the research approach and findings.</li> <li>The traditional dissertation includes an abstract and five chapters, plus references:         <ul> <li>Abstract</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Chapter 1: Introduction</li> <li>Chapter 2: Literature review</li> <li>Chapter 3: Methodology</li> <li>Chapter 4: Results</li> <li>Chapter 5: Discussion</li> </ul>	
Multi-Paper Doctoral Dissertation	<ul> <li>The multi-paper dissertation must contain three papers but may contain more.</li> <li>At least two of the papers must report on empirical studies.</li> <li>At least two of the papers must be accepted for publication by the time of the dissertation defense. The remainder must be under peerreview with a peer review journal.</li> <li>All papers must be publishable in a peer-reviewed academic journal.         <ul> <li>Acceptable journal outlets include the Soules College of Business journal list and the current Australian Business Deans Council list.</li> <li>Other journal outlets must be approved by the graduate faculty in the UT Tyler HRD department and the dissertation committee.</li> </ul> </li> <li>The papers must be developed while the candidate is in the UT Tyler HRD PhD program.</li> <li>The doctoral candidate may collaborate with UT Tyler HRD faculty and students in the development of their papers providing that the doctoral candidate is the         <ul> <li>Sole author of at least one of the papers</li> <li>Lead author of at least two of the papers</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	

View completed Human Resource Development Dissertations.

For more information, visit the <u>UT Tyler Dissertation Center</u>.



#### **Graduate School Financial Assistance**

Tuition payments are due the Friday before the start of the semester, by 5:00PM CST.

Eligible students may enroll in one of the three installment plans: four-installments, three-installments, or the two installments payment plan. Installment plans cover the expenses for tuition and fees. Eligible students may sign up in the myUTTyler Student Center in the Finances section, then click on account inquiry. Further information can be <u>found here</u>.

Graduate students are highly encouraged to apply for the numerous financial assistance options available at UT Tyler:

#### **Graduate Fellowship**

Full-time domestic and international students are encouraged to apply for the New Graduate Fellowship to earn a \$1000 award. With this award, non-Texas residents also qualify for in-state tuition during their first academic year of graduate study. Visit the Financial Support <u>page</u> for more details on qualifications, additional benefits, and to apply. The award may be renewable.

#### **Academic Affairs Teaching Assistantship**

Ph.D. students are eligible to apply for a Graduate Teaching Assistantship after coursework is completed, which includes a stipend depending on experience. Interested students should work with the program chair to initiate the process. Further information can be found <a href="here">here</a>.

#### **Scholarships**

Scholarships are granted to students on a yearly basis. The Soules College of Business offers scholarships to returning students. Typically, scholarship applications are due at the end of the spring semester and awarded for the following academic year. More information can be found on the <a href="scholarships website">scholarships website</a>.

Additionally, if students are concerned with their financial aid package, they are encouraged to reach out to <a href="mailto:scholarships@uttyler.edu">scholarships@uttyler.edu</a>. Oftentimes, the staff will be able to work with you on an individual basis.

#### **Grants**

Every year UT Tyler offers internal grants for faculty, students, and staff engaging in research. Grant proposals are due in mid-spring and granted for the following academic year. Please see the Office of Research and Scholarship website for more information.



The following websites also offer grant opportunities for individuals engaging in research:

- Academic of Human Resource Development (AHRD)
- American Education Research Association (AERA)
- Society of Human Resource Management (SHRM)
- Society of Industrial Organizational Psychology (SIOP)

#### **Elevate**

The UT Tyler Advancement office offers opportunities for students, faculty, and staff to crowdsource funding for various projects. To submit an application, please <u>visit this link</u>. Students are highly encouraged to work with faculty before initiating an application.

#### **Grad School 180**

<u>Grad School 180</u> is an annual competition at the University of Texas at Tyler. All graduate students are invited to participate by presenting the significance of your research interest in 180 seconds. Cash prizes are available to winners.



## **Important Information**

#### **Human Resource Development Ph.D. Program Orientation**

Students are required to attend a half day **mandatory** Human Resource Development Ph.D. Program Orientation program. The orientation will be held on campus on the first day of your first class. Look for more information near the beginning of the semester.

#### **Graduate Student Orientation**

Visit the <u>Graduate Student Orientation</u> page to find out general information regarding financial aid, library services, scholarships, <u>Canvas</u>, and the Graduate Student Association (GSA). Be sure to complete Canvas 101 to learn how to navigate the learning management system to access course assignments and materials. Pay attention to the collaboration tools, like Zoom, which are used by professors and students to collaborate when away from campus.

#### **Course Catalog**

Visit the <u>Human Resource Development Ph.D. course catalog</u> for more details on program requirements. The course catalog provides the most up to date and accurate information about the program.

#### **Faculty**

As a student in the Human Resource Development Ph.D. program, you will work with professors with varying interests and research experience. View Department of HRD faculty bios here.

#### **Campus Bookstore**

Order textbooks for all your courses through the campus bookstore. Orders can be placed <u>online</u> or visit the store for in person shopping.

#### **Parking**

Visit the <u>cashier's office</u> to purchase a parking permit. However, parking is not enforced after 5pm and on the weekends so it is up to the student whether they want to purchase a parking pass.

#### **Graduate Student Business Cards**

Order graduate student business cards to network during conferences.

#### **UT Tyler Patriot Printing**

Visit the on campus full-service copy center for all your printing needs.



#### **Cowan Center**

The Cowan Center is a performing arts center located on campus that hosts a variety of professional touring performance events throughout the year. There are special discounts for students. To reserve your tickets, call (903) 566-7424. For a current performance schedule <u>view</u> here.

#### **UT Tyler Discount Program**

The UT Tyler discount program creates opportunities for businesses to connect with students by offering discounts on products and services. <u>View the website</u> for a full list of discounts.

#### Zoom

All UT Tyler students have access to a free Zoom business account. Create your free business account here.

#### **Patriot Email**

All UT Tyler students receive a <u>Patriot email account</u> for important school communications. Check your Patriot email every day, as this serves as the only official electronic communication source the University has for corresponding with students. All financial and academic notices will be sent through your Patriot email account.



#### **Professional Associations and Conferences**

We encourage doctoral students to attend conferences, present posters and papers, and build your network during your doctoral studies. Students can contact the Soules College of Business to apply for stipends to assist with conference registration fees.

The following conferences are recommended for Human Resource Development Ph.D. students. Visit each site for submission deadlines and upcoming conference locations.

#### Academy of Human Resource Development (AHRD)

Ph.D. students are eligible to submit for the Dissertation of the Year Award. Visit the conference website for criteria and submission deadlines.

#### Academy of Management (AOM)

#### East Texas Research Conference

The **East Texas Research Conference** is held each spring at UT Tyler. All Human Resource Development Ph.D. students are encouraged to submit a proposal to the East Texas Research Conference. The Soules College of Business historically has paid the registration fees for proposals (paper or poster) accepted.

Society of Industrial and Organizational Psychology (SIOP)

#### Southwest Academy of Management

#### Southern Management Association (SMA)

The SMA hosts an annual Doctoral Consortia for early stage and late stage doctoral students. The consortia are a wonderful opportunity to network with faculty and students, as well as learn the keys to successful research, teaching, and service.

The <u>PhD Project</u> hosts an annual conference and provides resources and a support network for Black/African-American, Latinx/Hispanic-American and Native American students interested in pursuing business doctoral degrees.



## **Doctoral Programs FAQ's**

# Q: I have not taken statistics in over 10 years. What can I do to prepare for doctoral level statistics courses?

A: In the summer before your first fall semester, Dr. Nimon will offer a set of statistics primer modules as a refresher on key terms and concepts. The modules are optional and can all be completed online. Students are encouraged to review the content and complete the activities. Bonus points are awarded for successful completion of activities.

#### Q: What are the recommended search engines to find published peer reviewed research?

A: Most students use the UT Tyler Library <u>Swoop Search</u> and <u>Google Scholar</u> search engines to locate published research.

#### Q: What happens if I earn a C in a course?

A: According to the <u>UT Tyler catalog</u>, "To remain in good standing in the HRD Ph.D. program, a student may earn no more than one C grade regardless of their overall GPA. A second C grade or any one grade below a C will subject the student to dismissal from the Ph.D. program in HRD at the discretion of the program director and the Dean of the Soules College of Business".

A: A student may repeat any course previously taken at UT Tyler that would not normally be repeatable for credit if the last grade received in the course was a "C", "D" or "F" for master's and Ph.D. students (UT Tyler catalog).

#### Q: How long is coursework?

A: A full-time student will complete their course work in two years, including summers.

#### Q: How long does it take an individual to graduate with a Ph.D. in HRD from UT Tyler?

A: On average, if students remain full-time, they can graduate with their doctorate within five years of starting the program.

#### Q: What happens if I do not turn in all class assignments by the end of the semester?

A: Your end of semester grades are based on the timely and successful completion of assignments.



#### Q: Who can be on my dissertation committee?

A: Students must have 3 committee members in total (including chair); all must have Graduate Research Faculty status. Dissertation committee membership must include at least two UT Tyler HRD faculty. Dissertation committee members may include a member external to UT Tyler subject to approval from the Graduate School. See the graduate school website for more information and page 7 of this document for further insight.

# Q: How long does a student have to complete their dissertation once they are a doctoral candidate?

A: According to the <u>UT Tyler catalog</u>, students have a total of five years to complete their dissertation once they have been admitted to candidacy.

#### Q: What should I wear for my dissertation defense?

A: Please wear business casual for all professional activities related to the dissertation process.

#### **Q:** What is a dissertation defense like?

A: Typically, a dissertation defense includes a presentation by the Ph.D. candidate over their dissertation or articles followed by Q&A by faculty and other guests. Students can invite guests to the defense. After Q&A, the student is asked to leave the room so that the faculty can determine whether the student passes. Also see the guidelines for the conduct of a dissertation defense published by the Graduate School.

Additional questions?

Contact Dr. Nimon at knimon@uttyler.edu.

Follow us on LinkedIn®



## Human Resource Development Ph.D. Alum in Higher Education

Many of our program graduates have successfully secured positions in higher education. See placements of HRD Ph.D. graduates below.

Graduate	Institution	Department/Position
Dr. Beth Adele	Oklahoma City University	Director and Assistant Professor Mass Communications
Dr. James Aller	Georgia Southwestern State University	Associate Professor Management
Dr. Julia Barrios	University of Dallas	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. Marvin Bontrager	Georgia Gwinnett College	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. Bryn Brown	Tarleton State University	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. Tammy Burnette	Tyler Junior College	Professor and Department Chair, Healthcare Technology and Medical Systems
Dr. Sam Carrell	The University of Texas at Tyler	Associate Registrar
Dr. Silvana Chambers	University of Houston-Clear Lake	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. J. Mark Clardy	University of Houston-Clear Lake	Assistant Professor Healthcare Administration
Dr. Joy Cooper	Texas A&M University at Texarkana	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. Rosemary Cooper	The University of Texas at Tyler	Executive Director of Career Success
Dr. John Dexter	Troy University	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. David Fowler	Lander University	Assistant Professor
Dr. Ashley Hall	Stephen F. Austin State University	Assistant Professor Business Communication/Legal Studies
Dr. Gregg Keiffer	Houston Baptist University	Assistant Professor and Interim Dean, Management
Dr. Thomas Kramer	PennState Mont Alto	Lecturer, Baccalaureate Business Program
Dr. Abbie Lambert	University of Central Oklahoma	Assistant Professor Management



	T (*)	TD 4 4/TD *4*
Graduate	Institution	Department/Position
Dr. Ame Lambert	Portland State University	VP, Global Diversity & Inclusion
Dr. Ben LeVan	Charleston Southern University	Associate Professor Business Administration
Dr. Mary Lynn Lunn	University of Richmond	Visiting Instructor Management
Dr. Jon Musgrave	Morehead State University	Assistant Professor of Management
Dr. Mandolen Mull	Rockford University	Chair and Assistant Professor Management
Dr. John Dexter	Troy University	Assistant Professor Human Resource Development
Dr. Elva Resendez	Purdue University	Vising Assistant Professor Management
Dr. Jeff Risinger	Ohio State University	SVP of Talent, Culture, and Human Resources
Dr. Kevin Sanford	Los Angeles Valley College	Assistant Professor Business
Dr. Kristin Scott	McNeese State University	Assistant Professor Management
Dr. Judy Sun	The University of Texas at Tyler	Associate Professor Human Resource Development





















































#### Student of the Year

Each year the faculty present a "HRD PhD Student of the Year" award to a current outstanding student who has demonstrated academic excellence as well as service to the College, University, or profession at large. Awards are conferred at the end of the academic year. Recipients receive an academic medal to be worn at graduation. The following students are past award winners:

2014-2015 - Sam Carrell

2015-2016 – Gregg Keiffer

2016-2017 - Mandolen Mull and Julia Barrios

2017-2018 – Marvin Bontrager

2018-2019 – Silvana Chambers

2019-2020 - Katherine Stone

2020-2021 – Joanna Norman



#### Dissertation Awards

Students have received awards for outstanding dissertations from the following sources:

#### Esworthy Malcolm S. Knowles Dissertation of the Year – Academy of Human Resource Development

2020 – Jennifer Duplessis, Winner

2019 – Silvana Chambers, Winner

2018 - William S. Carrell, First Runner-Up

2017 – Ben LeVan, Winner

2014 - Paula E. Anthony-McMann, Winner

2012 – Judy Yi Sun, Winner

# <u>Leo and Margaret Goodman-Malamuth Dissertation Award – American Association of University</u> <u>Administrators</u>

2021 - Kristin S. Scott, Winner

#### Workplace Learning SIG Exemplary Dissertation Award – American Education Research Association

2018 - William S. Carrell, Winner



# Appendices



# The University of Texas at Tyler

## The Graduate School—Human Resource Development

Approval of Dissertation Proposal

The proposal must be approved no later than the beginning of the fifth year of study in order for the student to remain in good academic standing. This form is to be filed in the student folder.

Student name (last, first, MI)		Student ID #	
Address Line 1 (street, apt.) _			
Address Line 2 (city, state, zip	)		
Program: Ph.D. in HRD Sem	ester/Year Student Entered Program		
Date advanced to candidacy _			
Date proposal approved			
Proposal Title			
Committee Member	Signature	Approved	Not Approved
Approval			
Director of Doctoral Program	(please print) Signature		 Date



#### Human Resource Development Ph.D. Alum Publications

UT Tyler HRD doctoral graduates are actively contributing to the HRD body of knowledge. See below for some recent publications of program alumni.

- **Anthony-McMann, P. E.,** Ellinger, A. D., Astakhova, M., & Halbesleben, J. R. (2017). Exploring different operationalizations of employee engagement and their relationships with workplace stress and burnout. *Human Resource Development Quarterly*, 28, 163-195. https://doi.org/10.1002/hrdq.21276
- **Berrios, J.,** & Nimon, K. (2018) [Writer's Forum]. metaBUS: A tool for informing HRD theory, research, and practice. *New Horizons in Adult Education and Human Resource Development, 30*(3), 78-88. https://doi.org/10.1002/nha3.20227
- Blount, J., Wright, C. S., **Hall, A. A.**, & Biss, J. L. (2016). Social media: Creating student awareness of its use in the hiring process. *Southern Journal of Business and Ethics*, 8, 202-217. Retrieved from <a href="https://scholarworks.sfasu.edu/businesscom\_facultypubs/57">https://scholarworks.sfasu.edu/businesscom\_facultypubs/57</a>
- **Brown, B.,** & Nimon, K. (2016). [Book Review] The Oxford handbook of multimethod and mixed methods research inquiry. *New Horizons in Adult Education and Human Resource Development*, 28(4), 53-55. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1002/nha3.20163">https://doi.org/10.1002/nha3.20163</a>
- Carpenter, R., & Silberman, D. (2020). Veteran-Civilian Career Identity Conflict: What is Human Resource Development's Role? *New Horizons in Adult Education and Human Resource Development*, 32(3), 35-53. https://doi.org/10.1002/nha3.20287
- **Carrell, S.**, Ellinger, A., D., Nimon, K., Sewon, K. (in press). Examining the relationships among managerial coaching, perceived organizational support, and job engagement in the U.S. higher education context. *European Journal of Training and Development*.
- **Chambers, S.,** & Nimon, K. (2018). Conducting survey research using MTurk. *Handbook of Research on innovative techniques, trends, and analysis for optimized research methods* (pp. 258-288). Hershey, PA: IGI Global.
- Chambers, S., & Nimon, K., Anthony, P. (2016). A primer for conducting survey research using MTurk: Tips for the field. *International Journal of Adult Vocational Education and Technology*, 7(2), 54-73. <a href="https://doi.org/10.4018/IJAVET.2016040105">https://doi.org/10.4018/IJAVET.2016040105</a>
- **Chambers, S.** (2016). Regression discontinuity design: A guide for strengthening causal inference in HRD. *European Journal of Training and Development*, 40, 615-637. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJTD-07-2015-0057
- **Chretien, J.,** Nimon, K., Reio, T. G., Jr. (2020). Responding to low coefficient alpha: Possible alternatives to the file drawer. *Human Resource Development Review, 19*(3), 215-239. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1177/1534484320924151">https://doi.org/10.1177/1534484320924151</a>
- **Dexter, J. C.** (2020). Human resources challenges of military to civilian employment transitions. *Career Development International*, 25(5), 481. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1108/CDI-02-2019-0032">https://doi.org/10.1108/CDI-02-2019-0032</a>
- **Duckworth, G., & Krouse, A.** (2020). Look up: Life without technology. In J. A. Delello & R. R. McWhorter (Eds.), *Disruptive and Emerging Technological Trends Research across Education and the Workplace* (pp. 269-293). IGI Global Inc. <a href="https://doi.org/10.4018/978-1-7998-2914-0">https://doi.org/10.4018/978-1-7998-2914-0</a>



- **Duplessis, J.,** Ellinger, A., D., Nimon, K., Sewon, K. (in press). Examining the mediating effect of job crafting on the relationship between managerial coaching and job engagement among apprentice electricians in the U.S. skilled trades. *Human Resource Development International*.
- Ellinger, A. D., Anderson, V., Gubbins, C., **Lunn, M. L.,** Nimon, K. F., Sheehan, M., Werner, J. M. (2013). [Editorial] The generous spirit of the peer review process: Perspectives and insights from the HRDQ Editorial team on providing high-quality reviews. *Human Resource Development Quarterly*, 24, 417-428. https://doi.org/10.1002/hrdq.21176
- **Fowler, D.** (2018). The search for authentic church senior leadership during organizational transition. *Theology of Leadership Journal*, *1*(2), 76-95. Retrieved from <a href="http://theologyofleadership.com/index.php/tlj/article/view/20">http://theologyofleadership.com/index.php/tlj/article/view/20</a>
- **Fowler, D., Musgrave, J.,** & Musgrave, J. (2020). A traditional protestant church experiencing substantial membership decline: an organizational strength analysis and observations to attend or leave the institution. *International Journal of Organization Theory & Behavior*, 23, 207-223. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOTB-02-2019-0012">https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOTB-02-2019-0012</a>
- **Fowler, D., Stevenson, R. & Wilson, A**. (2019). Customer service training and its effect on employee to employee relationships and work climate: A case study. *Journal of Management and Marketing Research*, 23, 1-12.
- Gilley, A., **Waddell, K., Hall, A. A.,** Avery, S., Gilley, J. W. (2015). Manager behavior, generation, and influence on work-life balance: An empirical investigation. *The Journal of Applied Management and Entrepreneurship*, 20(1), 3-23. https://doi.org/10.9774/GLEAF.3709.2014.ja.00003
- **Hall, A. A.,** Delello, J., McWhorter, R. (2017). Using Facebook to supplement instruction in online and hybrid sources. *International Journal of Innovation and Learning.*, 22(1), 87-104. https://doi.org/10.1504/IJIL.2017.085250
- **Hall, A. A.**, & DuFrene, D. D. (2016). Best practices for launching a flipped classroom. *Business and Professional Communication Quarterly*, 79, 234-242. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1177/2329490615606733">https://doi.org/10.1177/2329490615606733</a>
- **Hall, A.** (2016). Exploring the workplace communication preferences of millennials. *Journal of Organizational Culture, Communications and Conflict*, 20, 35-44. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.abacademies.org/journals/journal-of-organizational-culture-communications-and-conflict-home.html">https://www.abacademies.org/journals/journal-of-organizational-culture-communications-and-conflict-home.html</a>
- **Hall, A.** (2016). The use of recorded lecture videos: Investigating learning preferences and universal design for learning principles. *M-PBEA Journal*, 7(1), 12-17. Retrieved from <a href="https://mpbea.org/journal">https://mpbea.org/journal</a>
- Holland, D., Kraha, A., Zientek, L. R., Nimon, K., **Berrios, J**., Johnson, U., Ponce, H. F., & Henson, R. K. (2018). Reliability generalization for the Motivated Strategies for Learning Questionnaire: A meta-analytic view of reliability estimates. *SAGE Open*, July-September, 1-29. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244018802334">https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244018802334</a>
- Holt, S., **Hall, A. A.,** Gilley, A. (2018). Essential components of leadership development programs. *Journal of Managerial Issues*, *30*, 214-229. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.pittstate.edu/business/journals/journal-of-managerial-issues.html">https://www.pittstate.edu/business/journals/journal-of-managerial-issues.html</a>
- **Keiffer, G. L.,** & Lane, F. C. (2016). Propensity score analysis: an alternative statistical approach for HRD researchers. *European Journal of Training and Development*, 40(8/9), 660-675. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1108/EJTD-06-2015-0046">https://doi.org/10.1108/EJTD-06-2015-0046</a>



- **Laurie, M. M.** (2020). eService-Learning: Bridging online graduate students' sense of belonging with community engagement. In J. A. Delello & R. R. McWhorter (Eds.), *Disruptive and Emerging Technological Trends Research across Education and the Workplace* (pp. 116-142. IGI Global Inc. <a href="https://doi.org/10.4018/978-1-7998-2914-0">https://doi.org/10.4018/978-1-7998-2914-0</a>
- **Lunn, M. L.** (2014). Strengthening your submissions to HRDQ: Advice from the managing editor. *Human Resource Development Quarterly*, 25, 115-120. https://doi.org/10.1002/hrdq.21179
- Mull, M., Roberts, P., Keiffer, G., Berrios, J., & Nimon, K. (2019). Developing a benchmarking survey for academic members of an international academy. *Planning for Higher Education*, 77(2), 39-49. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.scup.org/learning-resources/journal/">https://www.scup.org/learning-resources/journal/</a>
- Nimon, K., **Berrios, J., Keiffer, G. L., Mull, M., & Musgrave, J.** (2017). Regression as the univariate general linear model: Examining test statistics, *p* values, effect sizes, and descriptive statistics using R. *General Linear Model Journal*, 43(1), 50-82. <a href="https://doi.org/10.31523/glmj.043001.004">https://doi.org/10.31523/glmj.043001.004</a>
- Nimon, K., Conley, D., Bontrager, M. Keiffer, G., & Brown, B. (2019). Descriptive statistics from published research: A readily available alternative to raw data to assess analytic reproducibility and robustness. *Advances in Developing Human Resources*, 21, 421-437. https://doi.org/10.1177/1523422319869853
- Nimon, K., Joo, B., & **Bontrager, M.** (2020). Work cognitions and work intentions: A canonical correlation study. *Human Resource Development International*, 24(1), 65-9. https://doi.org/10.1080/13678868.2020.1775038
- Reio, T., **Chambers, S.,** Gavrilova-Aguilar, M., & Nimon, K. (2015). Commonality analysis: A tool for reference librarian's. *Reference Librarian*, *56*, 315-326. https://doi.org/10.1080/02763877.2015.1057682
- **Scott, K.C.** (2021). A Review of Faculty Self-Assessment TPACK Instruments (January 2006 March 2020). *International Journal of Information and Communication Technology Education (IJICTE)*, 17(2), 118-137. <a href="https://doi.org/10.4018/IJICTE.2021040108">https://doi.org/10.4018/IJICTE.2021040108</a>
- **Scott, K**., & Nimon, K. (2015) [Book Review] Management, valuation, and risk for human capital and human assets: Building the foundation for a multi-disciplinary, multi-level theory. *Human Resource Development International*, *19*, 91-94. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1080/13678868.2015.1066478">https://doi.org/10.1080/13678868.2015.1066478</a>
- **Scott, K.,** & Nimon, K. (in press). Construct validity of data from a TPACK self-assessment in 2-year public college faculty in the U.S. *Journal of Research on Technology in Education*. https://doi.org/10.1080/15391523.2020.1790444
- **Waddell, K., & Hall, A.** (2015). Testing the mediating effect of employee burnout on the relationship between Internet addiction and job performance. *Business Studies Journal*, 7, 85-93.
- Zientek, L. R., Nimon, K., & **Brown, B.** (2016). Analyzing data from a pretest-posttest control group design: The importance of statistical assumptions. *European Journal of Training and Development*, 40, 638-659. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1108/EJTD-08-2015-0066">https://doi.org/10.1108/EJTD-08-2015-0066</a>
- Zigarmi, D., Nimon, K., & Conley, D. (2018). Employee affect- and cognition-based trust in their leader and the implications for employee work intentions: A canonical correlation study. *New Horizons in Adult Education and Human Resource Development*, 30(3), 23-40. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1002/nha3.20221">https://doi.org/10.1002/nha3.20221</a>



## **Revision history**

Date	Revisions	
July 2020	Document created.	
June 2021	2021 Changed hyperlink to current course catalog	
	Verified all hyperlinks	
	Updated/verified graduate placements	
	Added section on dissertation awards	
July 2021	Updated graduate placements	
	Updated alum publications	